
 

 

February 6, 2017 
7:00 p.m. 

2nd Floor Council Chambers 
1095 Duane Street  Astoria OR 97103 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

3. REPORTS OF COUNCILORS 
 

4. CHANGES TO AGENDA 
 

5. PRESENTATIONS 
(a) Advance Astoria:  Project Update (Community Development) 
(b) Skip Hauke of Astoria-Warrenton Chamber of Commerce 

 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be adopted by one 
motion unless a member of the City Council requests to have any item considered 
separately. Members of the community may have an item removed if they contact the City 
Manager by 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 
(a) City Council Minutes of 1/3/17 
(b) City Council Minutes of 1/17/17 
(c) Boards and Commissions Minutes 

(1) Library Board Minutes of 11/29/16 
(d) Memorandum of Understanding Between Clatsop County and the Cities of Astoria, Seaside 

and Warrenton for Cooperation in the Provision of Library Services (Library) 
(e) Resolution Amending City of Astoria Nondiscrimination Policy (City Manager)  
(f) Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority (IFA) Storm Damage Grant Acceptance (Public 

Works) 
(g) FEMA Emergency Shoreline Erosion Project Construction Contract Award (Public Works) 
(h) Veterans and War Memorial Grant Application to Restore the Doughboy Monument (Parks) 
(i) Authorization to Enter into an Agreement with Greenworks P.C. to Produce Site-Specific Park 

Plans at Shively and McClure Parks (Parks) 
 

7. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
All agenda items are open for public comment following deliberation by the City Council. 
Rather than asking for public comment after each agenda item, the Mayor asks that audience 
members raise their hands if they want to speak to the item and they will be recognized. In 
order to respect everyone’s time, comments will be limited to 3 minutes. 
(a) Ordinance Revising City Code Section 5.810 Providing for Identification of Dangerous 

Animals; Appeals; Restrictions Pending Appeal (2nd reading & adoption) (Police) 
(b) Ordinance Amending City Code Section 1.964A Pertaining to City Manager’s Spending 

Authority (2nd reading & adoption) (City Council)   
(c) Waterfront Bridges Replacement Project (6th – 11th Streets) Funding Update and Loan 

Application (Public Works) 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA) 
 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE DISABLED.  AN INTERPRETER FOR THE 
HEARING IMPAIRED MAY BE REQUESTED UNDER THE TERMS OF ORS 192.630 BY 

CONTACTING THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE AT 503-325-5824. 

AGENDA 
 ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL 



 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 
 
 
 
February 2, 2017 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF TUESDAY, FERUARY 6, 2017 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
Item 5(a): Advance Astoria:  Project Update (Community Development) 
 

Community Development Director Kevin Cronin will provide Council with an 
update regarding the Advance Astoria project. 

 
Item 5(b): Skip Hauke of Astoria-Warrenton Chamber of Commerce 
 

Astoria-Warrenton Chamber of Commerce Director Skip Hauke will make a 
presentation regarding the Chamber’s services to the local business community 
for 2016 and 2017 year to date.  

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Item 6(a): City Council Minutes 
 

The minutes of the City Council meeting of January 3, 2017 are enclosed for 
review.  Unless there are any corrections, it is recommended that Council approve 
these minutes. 

 
Item 6(b): City Council Minutes 
 

The minutes of the City Council meeting of January 17, 2017 are enclosed for 
review.  Unless there are any corrections, it is recommended that Council approve 
these minutes. 

 
Item 6(c)(1): Boards and Commissions Minutes 
 

The minutes of the Library Board meeting of November 29, 2016 are enclosed.  
Unless there are any questions or comments regarding the contents of these 
minutes, they are presented for information only. 

 



Page 2 of 7 

Item 6(d): Memorandum of Understanding Between Clatsop County and the Cities of 
Astoria, Seaside and Warrenton for Cooperation in the Provision of Library 
Services (Library)  

 
Since 2010, the Astoria City Council has authorized Library staff to participate in 
Libraries ROCC! Rural Outreach to Clatsop County.  Partners and collaborators 
include the school districts of Astoria, Jewell, Knappa, Seaside and Warrenton, 
the Northwest Regional Education Service District, Clatsop County, and the public 
libraries of Astoria, Seaside, and Warrenton.  Libraries ROCC activities include 
library cards for all children ages birth to nineteen, a collaborative countywide 
summer reading program, and courier service between the Seaside, Warrenton 
and Astoria libraries. Clatsop County provided $5000 in 2016 to assist with the 
program.  A previous Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) was signed by the cities 
on May 1, 2016.  This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) simply formalizes 
County participation and will be for a new three year period. 

 
The Library Directors of the Seaside, Warrenton and Astoria libraries leverage the 
work of the past six years by seeking community and corporate donations to 
support ROCC library cards and summer programs and to establish an 
endowment fund.  The financial impact of this MOU for the City of Astoria is 
estimated at $850 a year for mileage and staff time to continue courier service. 
Courier service enables the libraries to continue sharing collections.  This cost 
may be reduced if a grant paid Outreach Coordinator is able to assist with courier 
service.  Any party may discontinue participation with a 90 day notice.  This MOU 
is to be reconsidered in three years. The MOU has been reviewed and approved 
as to form by City Attorney Henningsgaard.  It is recommended that Council 
approve and authorize the City Manager to sign the Memorandum of 
Understanding between the Cities of Astoria, Seaside, Warrenton, and Clatsop 
County for Cooperation in the provision of Library Services. 

 
Item 6(e): Resolution Amending City of Astoria Nondiscrimination Policy (City 

Manager) 
 

On September 15, 2014, the Astoria City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-25 
establishing a Policy on Nondiscrimination.  At their July 18, 2016 meeting, the 
City Council considered and approved a request to remove the “slash (/)” as used 
in “gender identity/expression”, and in its place, use the word “and” to read as 
follows:  “gender identity and expression”.  The City of Astoria Policy regarding 
Nondiscrimination was amended to read as follows: 

 
“It is the policy of the City of Astoria that no person shall be denied the 
benefits of or be subjected to discrimination in any City program, 
service, or activity on the grounds of age, disability, race, religion, color, 
national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression. 
The City of Astoria also requires its contractors and grantees to comply 
with this policy.” 

 
Since the policy was originally adopted by Resolution No. 14-25, the amended 
language also needs to be adopted by resolution.  It is recommended that Council 
adopt the proposed Resolution implementing the change in language for the 
Nondiscrimination Policy. 



Page 3 of 7 

Item 6(f): Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority (IFA) Storm Damage Grant 
Acceptance Public Works) 

 
During the period of December 6 through 23, 2015, the State of Oregon 
experienced severe weather that caused a damaging winter storm.  The City of 
Astoria experienced erosion along the Columbia River shoreline and a washout 
along Pipeline Road where our 21” diameter water transmission main crosses a 
ravine.  As a result of the widespread damage, a Federal Declaration of 
Emergency was declared on February 17, 2016 and Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) Public Assistance Program funds became available 
to assist communities with the repair of their damages.  FEMA funds will cover 75 
percent of project costs and IFA will be providing matching grant funds for the 
additional 25 percent.  A description of the two City of Astoria projects are included 
in the associated memo.   

 
Following is a current project budget summary: 

 
Project Name FEMA Grant 

Funding (75%) 
IFA Grant 

Funding (25%) 
Project 
Total 

Emergency Shoreline Erosion Project $82,356 $27,452 $109,808 
Pipeline Road Waterline Stabilization 
Project (1) 

$110,869 $36,956 $147,825 

Total $193,225 $64,408 (2) $257,633 
 

It is recommended that Council authorize the Mayor and City Manager to sign the 
IFA contract for the 25 percent matching grant funds for the two FEMA projects, 
Emergency Shoreline Erosion Project and Pipeline Road Bank Stabilization 
project. 

 
Item 6(g): FEMA Emergency Shoreline Erosion Project Construction Contract Award 

(Public Works) 
 

During the period of December 2015, a severe weather pattern caused damaging 
winter storms.  The City of Astoria experienced erosion along the Columbia River 
shoreline at multiple locations during the event period.  On February 17, 2016 a 
declaration of emergency was declared and Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) Public Assistance Program funds became available to assist 
communities repair damages.  FEMA has awarded funding for this project.  Staff 
has received the Oregon Division of State Lands and Army Corp of Engineers’ 
permit for the project.  Since the Engineers’ estimate was under $100,000, per City 
Code, staff requested construction quotes from local contractors for the work.  
Following is a summary of the quotes received: 

 
Contractor Total Quote 

Big River Construction $44,415.00 
Clean Sweep Maintenance Inc. $87,652.50 

 
Funding for the project will temporarily come from the Promote Astoria Fund and 
will be reimbursed by FEMA (75%) and Oregon’s Infrastructure Finance Authority 
(25%).  It is recommended that Council authorize the award of a contract to Big 



Page 4 of 7 

River Construction, Incorporated, in the not-to-exceed amount of $44,415.00 for 
the Emergency Shoreline Erosion Project. 

 
Item 6(h): Veterans and War Memorial Grant Application to Restore the Doughboy 

Monument (Parks) 
 

The Veterans and War Memorials Grant Program was created and established by 
the Oregon Parks and Recreation Department to provide funding assistance to 
local governments for the construction and restoration of veterans and war 
memorials.  The program helps to honor Oregon’s soldiers and veterans by 
commemorating their service to the country.  The Parks Department, the American 
Legion Clatsop Post 12, Clatsop Community College’s Historic Preservation 
Program, and the Community Development Department have collaborated to 
develop a plan to renovate the Doughboy Monument’s interior, exterior, lighting 
system, and plumbing.  The total cost for renovation work is estimated at $23,605 
and the grant requires a 10% cash match. A $3,000 match from Astor West Urban 
Renewal Area Funds will be contributed toward this project as part of the larger 
Uniontown Reborn initiative.  This partnership dovetails with other key public 
investments that are planned for Uniontown, including façade grants for residential 
and commercial properties, a new streetscape design for W. Marine Drive, 
Maritime Memorial expansion, and the reopening of two-way traffic on Bond 
Street.  Furthermore, the Uniontown Association has expressed support for these 
investments to revitalize the historic business district.  The Historic Preservation 
Program is providing $6,480 in in-kind labor and Parks and Recreation 
Department staff are providing $1,500 in in-kind administration.  The total grant 
request is $12,625. It is recommended that the City Council authorize submitting 
the Veterans and War Memorial Grant application for $12,625 in grant funds to 
renovate the Doughboy Monument.  

 
Item 6(i): Authorization to Enter into an Agreement with Greenworks P.C. to Produce 

Site-Specific Park Plans at Shively and McClure Parks (Parks) 
 

The Parks and Recreation Department’s Comprehensive Master Plan 
recommends completing site-specific park plans at several locations. The process 
would allow the Department to plan for specific improvements and new 
development, as well as long term maintenance at each site.  The plans would 
assess alternative options for improvements and new development, and 
recommend the best option.  The planning process would involve input from the 
community, specify landscape features and park amenities to be developed or 
improved, and include cost estimates, funding strategies, and a timeframe for 
implementation. It was recommended that site master plans for Shively Park and 
McClure Park be prioritized.  During the community input process for the Parks 
and Recreation Comprehensive Master Plan, the public was asked to prioritize 
sites in need of master plans.  The City of Astoria was awarded the Oregon Parks 
and Recreation Department Local Government Grant of $40,000 to support 
funding site plans for Shively Park and McClure Park and approve the Local 
Government Grant Program Agreement.  On October 17, 2016 City Council 
accepted the grant and committed the required 40% match, in the amount of 
$16,000 cash budgeted in the Capital Improvement Fund and in-kind management 
and administration contribution of $11,000.  On November 7, 2016 City Council 



Page 5 of 7 

authorized staff to request qualifications for a consultant or team of consultants 
specializing in community engagement, gathering, consolidating, and prioritizing 
community input, planning and landscape design and/or architecture. One 
statement of qualifications was received from Greenworks P.C. a Landscape 
Architecture and Environmental Design firm that has completed several projects 
with the City of Astoria.  A selection panel comprised of Parks and Recreation 
Department staff, Community Development staff, neighbors of Shively Park, and a 
representative from the Friends of McClure Park evaluated the received statement 
of qualification. The consultant was evaluated based on proven experience, 
expertise, and technical merit for the requested services. Based on the successful 
evaluation of Greenworks submittal, Greenworks and City staff negotiated project 
management plan, budget and schedule for the project.  At this time the project 
has fallen one month behind schedule. To catch-up and with the tentative timeline 
the Parks and Recreation Department seeks City Council authorization to enter 
into a contract with Greenworks P.C. for a team of consultants specializing in 
community engagement, gathering, consolidating, and prioritizing community 
input, planning and landscape design and architecture to create site-specific park 
plans for Shively and McClure in the amount of $55,922.52.  It is recommended 
that City Council approve the contract with Greenworks P.C. in the amount of 
$55,922.52 to develop master plans for Shively and McClure Parks.  

 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Item 7(a): Ordinance Revising City Code Section 5.810 Providing for Identification of 

Dangerous Animal; Appeals; Restrictions Pending Appeal (2nd reading & 
adoption) (Police) 

 
This ordinance received its first reading at the January 17, 2017 City Council 
meeting.  Staff is recommending a change to the dangerous animals’ ordinance.  
The change creates a burden of proof in appeal hearings related to the 
classification of a dangerous animal.  There are two other changes proposed as 
well.  One eliminates the requirement for signed written statements allowing for 
recorded statements as well.  The other is to repair a typographical issue in the 
ordinance.  It is recommended that Council conduct the second reading and adopt 
the proposed ordinance.  

 
Item 7(b): Ordinance Amending Code Section 1.964A Pertaining to City Manager’s 

Spending Authority (2nd reading & adoption) (City Council) 
 

The first reading of this ordinance was held at the January 17, 2017 City Council 
meeting.  At the January 6, 2017 goal setting session, there was discussion 
regarding the City Manager’s spending authority which is currently set at $10,000.  
This amount has been in place since 1999.  There was discussion from Council 
members to increase that limit to $50,000.  Spending authorities for managers in 
our area are as follows: 
 

• Warrenton  ........... $25,000 • Seaside  ............ $50,000 
• Clatsop County..... $30,000 • Cannon Beach .. $50,000 

 



Page 6 of 7 

At the request of Council an ordinance revision has been prepared for 
consideration and is attached to this memorandum.  In addition to replacing the 
$10,000 amount with $50,000, the reference to bulk fuel has been deleted since 
the new spending authority would accommodate those purchases.  It should be 
noted that the City’s purchasing ordinance will continue to dictate how bids, 
solicitations, and purchases will be made.  In discussing the spending authority 
revision with City Attorney Henningsgaard, he noted that a subsequent review of 
the purchasing ordinance may be in order to better align the manager’s spending 
authority with that code and to better align the City purchasing ordinance with 
changes in State statutes.  Staff will begin review of the City’s purchasing codes.  If 
the City Council is in agreement with the proposed change in spending authority 
for the City Manager’s spending authority, it is recommended that Council hold a 
second reading and adopt the proposed ordinance.   

 
Item 7(c): Waterfront Bridges Replacement Project (6th – 11th Streets) Funding Update 

and Loan Application (Public Works) 
 

In September 2014, the City entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the 
Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) for the design phase of the 
Waterfront Bridges Replacement Project that will replace six bridge structures.  In 
April 2015, OBEC Consulting Engineers, Inc., (OBEC) was hired by ODOT as the 
engineering design consultant.  OBEC has performed design to 60% completion.  
City staff and ODOT staff are currently reviewing 60% design submittal.  An updated 
project cost estimate indicates the construction cost increased slightly with the 
design refinement from the 30% submittal (see table below).  As the project design 
has advanced, costs that are not reimbursed through ODOT have also been 
characterized.  The two major City expenses are utility relocations (sewer and 
water) and repairs to the 11th Street extension outside the project limits to achieve 
highway load capacity.  These expenses are currently estimated at $337,000 and 
must be paid solely by the City. 

 
The cost estimate prepared by OBEC is based on the results of investigations, 
research, and a much better understanding of the site conditions and constraints 
than when the project was originally scoped in 2013.  Based on OBEC’s analysis, a 
large part of the cost increase is attributed to deep bedrock that was discovered 
during the geotechnical explorations and larger project area that is necessary to 
connect the new structure to existing structures.  OBEC estimates that the project 
funding needs to be increased by $2,189,412 ($224,853 City match).  The project 
team is working with ODOT to confirm their support of the 60% design submittal, 
then a request to increase funding will be submitted.  

 
The total estimated City funds contributed to this project is estimated to be 
$1,698,548.  To date, the City has contributed $242,987 from Surface Transportation 
Program (STP) funds.  The remaining match $1,455,561 will need to be a loan that 
will be paid back by the City’s future STP funds.  STP Funds, which are managed by 
ODOT, are federal fuel tax dollars that are available to local agencies for 
transportation projects.  Since 2008 the City has received between $100,000 and 
$112,000 annually in STP funds. 

 



Page 7 of 7 

 ODOT 
Funding 

30% Design 
Cost Estimate 

60% Design 
Cost Estimate 

ODOT Bridge Program Grant ----------  $8,512,685 $10,702,097 $11,018,975 
City Funds ----------------------------------  $974,315 $1,224,903 $1,698,548 
PROJECT COST $9,487,000 $11,927,000 $12,717,523 
Annual Payment on 25-year Loan, 

3.5% Interest ---------------------------  $54,000 $79,000 $89,000 

 
A public open house was held at City Hall on December 14th to share information 
about the project’s proposed surface design features and discuss opinions.  A 
comment card was provided for written comments, which included options to vote 
for the pedestal styles and concrete bridge color. In general, the comments were 
supportive of the project and its appearance.  At the November 21st Council 
meeting, City Staff was authorized to submit the above options to ODOT for 
consideration with the basalt rock pedestals being the City’s preferred alternative 
and the board-formed concrete as the second choice. ODOT staff is currently 
preparing documentation and recommendations to submit to the State Historic 
Preservation Office (SHPO) for their review and concurrence.  Council will be 
presented with these options for a final decision.  It is recommended that Council 
authorize submitting an application to the Business Oregon Infrastructure Finance 
Authority for loan funding to provide the remaining match funds for the Waterfront 
Bridges Replacement Project in the amount of $1,455,561.   

 



  

Page 1 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  January 3, 2017 

CITY OF ASTORIA      CITY COUNCIL JOURNAL OF PROCEEDINGS  
City Council Chambers 
January 3, 2017 
 
A regular meeting of the Astoria Common Council was held at the above place at the hour of 7:00 pm. 
 
Councilors Present: Nemlowill, Brownson, Price, Jones, and Mayor LaMear. 
 
Councilors Excused: None 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Estes, Community Development Director Cronin, Parks and Recreation Director 
Cosby, Finance Director Brooks, Fire Chief Ames, Police Chief Johnston,  Public Works Director Cook, Library 
Director Pearson, and City Attorney Henningsgaard. The meeting is recorded and will be transcribed by ABC 
Transcription Services, Inc.  
 
OATHS OF OFFICE 
 

Item 3(a): Councilor Thomas Brownson, Ward 2 
 
Mayor LaMear administered the Oath of Office to Councilor Thomas Brownson, who was elected to a four-year 
term for Ward 2. 
 

Item 3(b): Councilor Bruce Jones, Ward 4 
 
Mayor LaMear administered the Oath of Office to Councilor Bruce Jones, who was elected to a four-year term 
for Ward 4. 
 

Item 3(c): Police Sergeant Andrew Randall 
 
Mayor LaMear administered the Oath of Office to new Police Department Sergeant Andrew Randall. 
 
Chief Johnston announced that Candace Pozdolski would be the Police Department’s first Lead Dispatcher, a 
new position that was recently created. She has eight years of dispatching experience and has been with the 
Astoria Police Department for three years. 
 
REPORTS OF COUNCILORS 
 

Item 4(a): Councilor Jones thanked City Council for a warm welcome and gracious hospitality. He 
thanked Staff for giving him a thorough briefing and said he was grateful for the opportunity to work with this 
group of Councilors and the Mayor. 
 
 Item 4(b): Councilor Price commented that this new Council includes members with diverse 
backgrounds of leadership, civic, and governmental duties. She looked forward to working with each Councilor. 
She knew Council was committed to working together, with boards and commissions, with Staff, and with 
constituents. 
 
 Item 4(c): Councilor Brownson said he was pleased to have the opportunity to serve on this Council 
and to serve Astoria. After spending time with Mayor LaMear, Staff, and the other Councilors, he believed this 
Council would be a very good working group and he hoped to accomplish a lot while in office. He wanted to be 
accessible to all of Astoria, and his ward in particular, so he planned to hold regular monthly meetings. He could 
be reached on social media and through the City office. His Facebook page is Councilor Brownson and his 
Twitter page is @ThomasBrownson. He has also signed up on NextDoor.com as part of the South Slope 
Neighborhood, where he planned to write posts and receive messages. He has enjoyed working with Staff, who 
have been very helpful and knowledgeable. 
 
 Item 4(d): Councilor Nemlowill welcomed the new Councilors and said it was great to have new 
energy on City Council. 
 



  

Page 2 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  January 3, 2017 

 Item 4(e): Mayor LaMear said she was excited about the New Year and the new Council. 
 
CHANGES TO AGENDA There were none. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 

Item 6(a): School Board Recognition Month 
 
Mayor LaMear read the proclamation declaring the month of January 2017 as School Board Recognition Month. 
She asked School Board members to stand for a round of applause and noted that she would deliver the 
proclamation to the School Board on Wednesday, January 4th at their meeting. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
The following items were presented on the Consent Calendar: 

7(a) City Council Minutes of 12/5/16 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Jones, seconded by Councilor Brownson, to approve the 
Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, Brownson, and Mayor 
LaMear; Nays: None. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Item 8(a): Ordinance Readopting Certain State Statutes to Reflect Changes Made by the 2016 
Oregon Legislature (1st Reading) (City Attorney) 

 
The 2016 legislation passed by the Oregon Legislature, for the most part, became effective on January 1, 
2017. Many of our City ordinances refer to or incorporate state statutes. Every year, the City routinely re-
adopts all referenced ORS sections to pick up any changes made by the legislature. This is done by a "global 
re-adoption,” which was the technique recommended by the League of Oregon Cities. The City is legally 
unable to prospectively adopt Oregon legislative changes, that is, we cannot adopt a state statute "as it now 
exists and is from time to time amended." The proposed ordinance has been reviewed and approved by the 
City Attorney. It is recommended that Council conduct the first reading of the proposed ordinance. 

 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Brownson, seconded by Councilor Nemlowill, to conduct the 
first reading of the Ordinance readopting certain State Statutes to reflect changes made by the 2016 Oregon 
Legislature. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, Brownson, and Mayor 
LaMear; Nays: None. 
 
Director Pearson conducted the first reading of the ordinance. 
 

Item 8(b): Ordinance Adopting Changes to 3 Percent Marijuana Tax on Sale of Marijuana Items 
by a Marijuana Retailer (1st Reading) (Finance)  

 
City Council Adopted Ordinance 16-02 on February 16, 2016 imposing a 3 percent tax on the sale of marijuana 
items by a recreational marijuana retailer and referring ordinance to electors of Astoria. On November 8, 2016, 
Local Ballot Measure 4-180 passed with Yes votes totaling 3,420 and No votes totaling 1,251. Additionally, on 
November 29, 2016 City Council approved an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with Oregon Department of 
Revenue for the collection and distribution of the 3 percent tax on recreational marijuana sales. The Oregon 
Department of Revenue has worked in conjunction with the League of Oregon Cities to provide suggested code 
language, which provides authority for penalty, and interest language in the enforcement of local marijuana tax 
collection. The attached ordinance, enacting the tax approval adopted by voters and adding language necessary 
for the collection and enforcement of the tax, was prepared by Attorney Henningsgaard and is attached for your 
consideration. Council would hold a first reading at the January 3, 2017 meeting and second reading at the 
January 17, 2017 meeting. It is recommended that Council consider holding a first reading of the ordinance 
enacting the voter approved 3 percent marijuana tax with collection and enforcement language incorporated. 
 



  

Page 3 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  January 3, 2017 

City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Nemlowill, seconded by Councilor Brownson, to conduct the 
first reading of the Ordinance enacting the voter approved 3 percent marijuana tax with collection and 
enforcement language incorporated. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, 
Brownson, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 
Director Brooks conducted the first reading of the ordinance. 
 

Item 8(c): Resolution Amending Fee Schedule for Astoria Aquatic Center (Parks) 
 
The Astoria Aquatic Center partners with the Astoria School District and the North Coast Swim Club (NCSC) to 
provide space within the lap pool for youth swim team members to practice. The Astoria Aquatic Center’s current 
lane rental fee is $25 per lane per hour, but neither the Astoria School District nor the NCSC can afford the $25 
per hour rate due to the length of their practices and amount of space they require. 
 
During the November 7, 2016 City Council meeting, Staff suggested that in addition to our current $25 per lane 
per hour rental fee, an additional rental option specifically for youth swim teams to practice be added to the fee 
resolution at a reduced rate of $5 per lane per hour. This rate would be contingent upon the rented space being 
used by youth swim teams for the purpose of practicing for a minimum of 100 hours per year and that all 
participants would be required to purchase a monthly or daily pass. After public comment and a discussion by 
Council, City Council stated that private youth swim teams should pay less than $5 per lane per hour and 
declared a 60 day moratorium on lane rental fees at the Astoria Aquatic Center charged to the Astoria School 
District and NCSC to allow staff time to re-negotiate with the organizations. 

 
Negotiations with NCSC were conducted on December 1, 2016. During this meeting, City staff discussed the 
challenges and impacts swim teams have on the facility as well as options to reformat NCSC’s current practice 
schedule to reduce the number of lanes utilized, thus reducing the additional cost incurred. NCSC explained that 
fee increases would negatively impact their organization and that reducing lanes was not a favored option. 
Differing rates were discussed between the NCSC and City staff. It was agreed that the parties would reconvene 
to discuss further. 
 
On December 7, 2016, Parks and Recreation Director Angela Cosby discussed with the Parks, Recreation, and 
Community Foundation Board the possibility of partnering with NCSC on assisting with lane rental fees. The 
Parks, Recreation, and Community Foundation Board seemed very interested in partnering with the NCSC and 
requested that representatives from NCSC contact them to discuss the option further. Also on December 7, 
2016 City staff met with NCSC representatives to negotiate a mutually agreeable fee. During this meeting, City 
staff shared the potential partnership with the Parks, Recreation, and Community Foundation; provided contact 
information; and encouraged the NCSC to contact them. Staff also attempted to negotiate a further reduced lane 
rental fee of $2.50 per lane per hour. If the NCSC maintained its current practice schedule of two hours per day, 
in three lanes, for six days a week, the annual additional cost would be $4,158. NCSC representatives were 
appreciative of the offered reduction and understood of the high costs associated with operating the Aquatic 
Center. They agreed to meet with the Parks, Recreation, and Community Foundation to see if they would be 
willing to pay the lane rental cost for the years to come before agreeing to the rate. 
 
The NCSC is scheduled to meet with the Parks, Recreation, and Community Foundation on January 25, 2017. 
Unfortunately, no agreement has been made and City staff is requesting an additional 60-day moratorium to 
provide time to continue negotiating with the North Coast Swim Club and provide them an opportunity to seek 
out additional financial support. It is recommended that Council extend the moratorium on lane rental fees 
charged to the North Coast Swim Club and Astoria School District for an additional 60 days. 
 
Mayor LaMear asked David Oser to speak, noting that Director Cosby would respond. 
 
David Oser, 254 W. Irving, Astoria, said during discussion of these fees at a December City Council meeting, 
someone had noted that the School District pays the fees for its students. Unfortunately, this is not the case. 
Students, their families, and through fundraising efforts pay the swim team’s pool use fees. Therefore, the 
students are in a position similar to the NCSC. He suggested the negotiations include Astoria School District 
Athletic Director Howard Rub. 
 



  

Page 4 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  January 3, 2017 

Director Cosby stated she spoke with Mr. Rub and he agreed with most of Mr. Oser’s comments. Mr. Rub had 
explained to her that fees are paid by the students, parents, fundraising by the Boosters, and School District 
funding. The School District has a very tight budget, so anytime fees increase, cuts are made elsewhere in the 
budget or more money has to be brought in somehow. 
 
City Manager Estes added that while Staff has discussed fees with the NCSC, he and Director Cosby have 
discussed the fees with Astoria School District Staff. The School District is waiting to hear the final rate 
negotiated with the NCSC. He confirmed for Mayor LaMear that City Council had indicated they believed groups 
like the NCSC should pay rates lower than the High School Swim Team and directed Staff to negotiate the 
specific amounts. 
 
Councilor Nemlowill confirmed that high school students pay for an Aquatic Center pass just like the NCSC 
participants. 
 
Councilor Brownson understood the original fee of $25 per hour was not being paid by the NCSC and this 
proposal was intended to rectify the situation. He asked if the high school had been paying the $25 per hour lane 
fees. Director Cosby explained that the school swim team had been paying a different lane fee that averaged 
$10 per hour.  
 
Councilor Price stated she did not have a problem extending the moratorium on fees for both swim teams. One 
issue is the attempt to comply with the fee schedule and the other issue is the attempt to manage the Parks 
Department budget. Extending the moratorium would not solve the problem of compliance with the fee schedule, 
but it would help to manage the budget. She suggested the moratorium be extended until the budget hearings 
take place. Staff is working on the Parks’ budget and one of the goals might be to reduce the amount of the 
General Fund that supports the Parks’ budget. 
 
City Manager Estes advised against waiting until budget time because Director Cosby would be making a 
presentation to City Council prior to the budget meetings, possibly within the next 60 days. Staff is considering 
how to work within the current Parks Department budget and avoid a year-end transfer. However, the current 
level of service provided by the Parks Department is not sustainable with the current budget. Therefore, cuts will 
be necessary throughout the entire Parks Department, as prioritized by City Council, or additional revenue will 
need to come in. Staff needs direction from Council on how to address the current budget, so they are 
considering a work session in the next few months to address Parks services in the current fiscal year. 
 
Councilor Price said the second quarter budget summary would be presented to Council in January. She asked 
if the summary would give Council an idea of how big a year-end transfer might be necessary. City Manager 
Estes said it was too early to determine a year-end transfer because many times, expenses come at the end of 
the year. He noted some salary savings that occurred this year would likely not occur again next year. 
 
Mayor LaMear confirmed that the NCSC planned to meet with the Parks and Recreation Foundation to see if the 
Foundation would be willing to pay the lane fees. She suggested the high school swim also approach the 
Foundation about paying for lane fees. Director Cosby noted that all three groups were non-profits and they 
would have to decide amongst themselves if they wanted to work together on this issue. 
 
Councilor Price said she preferred to hear Staff’s briefing before making a decision. City Manager Estes 
confirmed Staff could make a presentation on the Parks Department Budget before presenting a fee resolution 
for the swim clubs. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Jones, seconded by Councilor Brownson to extend the 
moratorium on lane rental fees charged to the North Coast Swim Club and Astoria School District for an 
additional 60 days. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, Brownson, and Mayor 
LaMear; Nays: None. 
 



  

Page 5 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  January 3, 2017 

NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA) 
 

Item 9(a): Election of City Council President 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Nemlowill, seconded by Councilor Brownson to elect Cindy 
Price as City Council President for 2017. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, 
Brownson, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 

Item 9(b): City Council FY2017-18 Goal Setting Session 
 
The City Council will meet with Department Heads on Friday, January 6, 2017 from 8:00 am to 1:00 pm, as part 
of their goal setting preparation for Fiscal Year 2017-18. The Council will then meet with facilitator Wes Hare on 
Friday, January 13, 2017 beginning at 8:00 am, and if needed, Saturday January 14, 2017, to further conduct 
their Fiscal Year 2017-18 goal setting session. These sessions will be held in the Council Chambers located on 
the 2nd Floor of City Hall, 1095 Duane Street. 
 
Mayor LaMear called for public comments. 
 
Fred Bohne, 824 35th Street, Astoria, welcomed Councilor Jones and Brownson to City Council, noting that he 
lived in Ward 4. The previous day, he went to Fred Meyer for a flu shot. The doctor told him he had recently 
arrived and was unable to find a place to live in Astoria, but finally found a place in Warrenton. Mr. Bone had 
suggested the doctor call and encourage City Manager Estes and Director Cronin to support the Accessory 
Dwelling Unit ordinance currently being considered by City Council because it would provide additional housing. 
He supported the ordinance because he has a detached coach house behind his main house that would make a 
beautiful living accommodation. If the ordinance passes, he could make his coach house available to renters. He 
was not in favor of bed and breakfasts or anything for outsiders. Housing for the people that live here is 
desperately needed. 
 
Patrick Wingard stated he wanted the new Councilors to have copies of the documents he previously submitted, 
including the letter, his presentation, and the one-page document showing the distribution of fees. He stated he 
would give these documents to Director Cosby. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Item 10(a): ORS192.660(2)(h) – Legal Counsel  
 
The City Council will recess to Executive Session to consult with counsel concerning legal rights and duties 
regarding current litigation or litigation likely to be filed. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:37 pm.  
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Finance Director City Manager  



  

Page 1 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  January 17, 2017 

CITY OF ASTORIA      CITY COUNCIL JOURNAL OF PROCEEDINGS  
City Council Chambers 
January 17, 2017 
 
A regular meeting of the Astoria Common Council was held at the above place at the hour of 7:00 pm. 
 
Councilors Present: Nemlowill, Jones, Price, Brownson, and Mayor LaMear. 
 
Councilors Excused: None 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Estes, Community Development Director Cronin, Finance Director Brooks, Fire 
Chief Ames, Deputy Chief Halverson, City Engineer Harrington, Library Director Pearson, and City Attorney 
Henningsgaard. The meeting is recorded and will be transcribed by ABC Transcription Services, Inc.  
 
REPORTS OF COUNCILORS 
 
 Item 3(a): Councilor Jones reported that he spent half of the previous day at the natural area at the 
east end of the Alderbrook Lagoon with Brook Stanley from the Northcoast Watershed Association and 
neighbors replacing invasive species with native plants. The Parks and Recreation Department has done a great 
job working with other agencies, non-profits, Chip-In events and volunteers to help maintain parks, especially 
considering the City’s budget constraints. On Saturday, he attended a memorial service at Cape Disappointment 
for the crews of several commercial fishing vessels and Coast Guard boats. He was thankful to all who work in 
the maritime industries, commercial fishing, fish processing, Coast Guard, the Job Corps Seamanship program, 
shipping, as bar pilots, and the Port because they play a vital role in the local and regional economy. Maritime 
industries should be considered as the City develops the five-year economic development strategy. 
 
 Item 3(b): Councilor Price reported that she held a salonical on Thursday and about seven or eight 
people attended. She believed people would be happy with City Council’s goal setting session. On Saturday 
between 11:30 am and 1:30 pm, there would be a Women’s March downtown. All genders were welcome to 
participate in the march, which was intended to be peaceful and positive. The women that organized the event 
were from all over the county. Thursday night from 5:00 pm to 9:00 pm, Director Cronin and Planner Ferber 
would be hosting the first community meeting of the Advance Astoria Business Development Program. She 
asked Director Cronin to speak about the event. 
 
Director Cronin said Tuesday would be full of focus group meetings and an advisory committee would meet at 
3:30 pm on Thursday. The public open house would be from 5:00 pm to 7:00 pm with a panel presentation from 
7:00 pm to 9:00 pm. He explained that the first phase of the Advance Astoria Program would be to complete an 
Economic Opportunities Analysis. The open house would have a lot graphs, charts, and maps displaying data 
discovered while doing research. 
 
 Item 3(c): Councilor Brownson reported that he spent the last few weeks meeting with department 
heads and City Staff and visited City facilities. He was impressed with the way department heads feel about their 
Staff and their positive attitudes toward what he believed would be a challenging year for the City. He was 
looking forward to watching their performance. City Council held their goal setting session on Friday and the 
Daily Astorian published a nice piece on the meeting. He believed the meeting was productive because Council 
was able to have reasonable discussions about some of the City’s challenges. Council identified the issues and 
developed a good plan to move things forward and get things done. He planned to host Meet the Councilor 
sessions on the second Thursday of each month at Three Cups of Coffee at 4:00 pm. 
 
 Item 3(d): Councilor Nemlowill reported she was glad to see that people from Fort George were in 
the audience because the business side of Astoria really makes things work. She was also glad to see Chief 
Ames and hoped he was feeling good. She believed the goal setting session was very productive and so far, all 
of the Councilors were getting along. She hoped Council could continue such a positive and professional 
working relationship. She believed Council was taking the housing issues seriously. They are pursuing a housing 
strategy and Requests for Proposals (RFP) for a public/private partnership at Heritage Square. She understood 
the Public Works Department heard many complaints, but she heard Staff did a great job clearing the streets of 
ice. 
 



  

Page 2 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  January 17, 2017 

 Item 3(e): Mayor LaMear reported that Council had the most productive and positive goal setting 
session the City has had since 2008, when she first began serving on City Council. Each Councilor has their own 
opinion, but everyone has been able to work respectfully and congenially with each other. This working 
relationship is reflected in their goals. Council enjoyed spending a lot of time on each goal and hearing what 
everyone had to say about each issue. City Council will now host a work session on the first Wednesday of each 
month from 9:00 am to 11:00 am to discuss issues. The first work session will include a report from the City’s 
auditor and a discussion on affordable housing. 
 
CHANGES TO AGENDA There were none. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
The following items were presented on the Consent Calendar: 

5(a) City Council Minutes of 12/19/16 
5(b) Boards and Commission Minutes 

(1) Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting of 10/18/16 
(2) Planning Commission Meeting of 9/27/16 
(3) Planning Commission Meeting of 10/25/16 
(4) Planning Commission Meeting of 12/6/16 

5(c) 16th Street CSO Separation Project – Final Report (Public Works) 
5(d) Public Information Emergency Response (PIER) System Replacement (Police) 

 
Councilor Nemlowill requested Item 5(c) be removed for further discussion. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Nemlowill, seconded by Councilor Brownson, to approve Items 
5(a), (b), and (d) of the Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, 
Nemlowill, Brownson, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 

Item 5(c): 16th Street CSO Separation Project – Final Report (Public Works) 
 
Councilor Nemlowill said she wanted to acknowledge and appreciate the Public Works Department for the 
report, adding that the project was completed $118,000 under budget. 
 
Mayor LaMear noted that it is rare for the City to come in under budget and this was wonderful. 
 
City Manager Estes noted no action by City Council was necessary for this item. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Item 6(a): Ordinance Readopting Certain State Statutes to Reflect Changes Made by the 2016 
Oregon Legislature (2nd Reading & Adoption) (City Attorney) 

 
This ordinance received its first reading at the January 3, 2017 City Council meeting. The 2016 legislation 
passed by the Oregon Legislature, for the most part, became effective on January 1, 2017. Many of our City 
ordinances refer to or incorporate state statutes. Every year, the City routinely re-adopts all referenced ORS 
sections to pick up any changes made by the legislature. This is done by a "global re-adoption,” which was the 
technique recommended by the League of Oregon Cities. The City is legally unable to prospectively adopt 
Oregon legislative changes, that is, we cannot adopt a state statute "as it now exists and is from time to time 
amended." The proposed ordinance has been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney. It is recommended 
that Council conduct the second reading and adopt the proposed ordinance. 
 
Director Brooks conducted the second reading of the ordinance. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Price, seconded by Councilor Nemlowill, to adopt the 
Ordinance readopting certain State Statutes to reflect changes made by the 2016 Oregon Legislature. Motion 
carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, Brownson, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 

Item 6(b): Ordinance Adopting Changes to 3 Percent Marijuana Tax on Sale of Marijuana Items 
by a Marijuana Retailer (2nd Reading & Adoption) (Finance)  



  

Page 3 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  January 17, 2017 

 
The first reading of this ordinance was held at the January 3, 2017 City Council meeting. On February 16, 2016, 
Council adopted Ordinance No. 16-02 imposing a 3 percent tax on the sale of marijuana items by a recreational 
marijuana retailer and referring ordinance to electors of Astoria. On November 8, 2016, Local Ballot Measure 4-
180 passed with Yes votes totaling 3,420 and No votes totaling 1,251. Additionally, on November 29, 2016 City 
Council approved an intergovernmental agreement with Oregon Department of Revenue for the collection and 
distribution of the 3 percent tax on recreational marijuana sales. The Oregon Department of Revenue has 
worked in conjunction with the League of Oregon Cities to provide suggested code language, which provides 
authority for penalty, and interest language in the enforcement of local marijuana tax collection. The attached 
ordinance, enacting the tax approval adopted by voters and adding language necessary for the collection and 
enforcement of the tax, was prepared by Attorney Henningsgaard and is attached for your consideration. Council 
would hold a first reading at the January 3, 2017 meeting and second reading at the January 17, 2017 meeting. 
It is recommended that Council hold the second reading and adopt the proposed ordinance enacting the voter 
approved 3 percent marijuana tax with collection and enforcement language incorporated. 
 
Director Cronin conducted the second reading of the ordinance. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Jones, seconded by Councilor Brownson, to adopt the 
ordinance enacting the voter approved 3 percent marijuana tax with collection and enforcement language 
incorporated. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, Brownson, and Mayor 
LaMear; Nays: None. 
 

Item 6(c): Ordinance Revising City Code Section 5.810 Providing for Identification of 
Dangerous Animals; Appeals; Restrictions Pending Appeal (1st Reading) (Police) 

 
Staff is recommending a change to the dangerous animals’ ordinance. The change creates a burden of proof in 
appeal hearings related to the classification of a dangerous animal. There are two other changes proposed as 
well. One eliminates the requirement for signed written statements allowing for recorded statements as well. The 
other is to repair a typographical issue in the ordinance. It is recommended that Council conduct the first reading 
of the proposed ordinance. 
 
Deputy Chief Halverson explained that this item was prompted by a recent municipal court hearing about a 
dangerous dog. Judge Kaino found that the City Code had no burden of proof language he could use to make a 
determination. 
 
City Attorney Henningsgaard confirmed he assisted Staff with the development of the proposed Code language. 
He explained that complaints of dangerous animals are submitted to the police chief, who conducts and 
investigation and creates findings. The animal’s owner has the right to appeal the findings and it is the burden of 
proof on the appeal that is in question. Criminal sanctions are possible if an owner violates what has been 
imposed by the police chief. However, in this case, the Judge did not know whether to provide clear and 
convincing evidence beyond a reasonable doubt or just preponderance. This ordinance has been designed to 
resolve that issue for the judge. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Jones, seconded by Councilor Price to conduct the first reading 
of the Ordinance revising City Code Section 5.810 providing for identification of dangerous animals; appeals; 
and restrictions pending appeal. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, 
Brownson, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 
Chief Ames conducted the first reading of the ordinance. 
 

Item 6(d): Ordinance Amending City Code Section 1.964A Pertaining to City Manager’s 
Spending Authority/Submittal of Grant Applications (1st Reading) (City Council) 

 
At the January 6, 2017 goal setting session, there was discussion regarding the City Manager’s spending 
authority, which is currently set at $10,000. This amount has been in place since 1999. There was discussion 
from Council members to increase that limit to $50,000. Spending authorities for managers in our area are as 
follows: 
 



  

Page 4 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  January 17, 2017 

• Warrenton $25,000 
• Clatsop County $30,000 
• Seaside $50,000 
• Cannon Beach $50,000 

 
At the request of Council, an ordinance revision has been prepared for consideration and is attached to this 
memorandum. In addition to replacing the $10,000 amount with $50,000, the reference to bulk fuel has been 
deleted since the new spending authority would accommodate those purchases. It should be noted that the 
City’s purchasing ordinance would continue to dictate how bids, solicitations, and purchases will be made. In 
discussing the spending authority revision with City Attorney Henningsgaard, he noted that a subsequent review 
of the purchasing ordinance might be in order to better align the manager’s spending authority with that code 
and to better align the City purchasing ordinance with changes in State statutes. Staff will begin review of the 
City’s purchasing codes. 
 
Also at the January 6th goal setting session, there was discussion regarding the City Council policy of sending 
grant applications to Council in advance of filing. There was direction to revise that policy as well. A revision is 
proposed below: 

 
• Grant applications that require a City of Astoria cash match shall be forwarded to the City Council for 

consideration as a part of the application process. 
 
This change will allow for staff to directly apply for grants which have no cash match commitment, but would 
allow for them to apply for grants with in-kind (staff time) matches. Applications which have a cash match 
commitment would continue to be reviewed by Council either before submittal, or possibly after, should the 
application be able to be rescinded (in cases where Council not wish to pursue the grant). As this is a policy, no 
ordinance is required. 
 
If the City Council is in agreement with the proposed change in spending authority for the City Manager’s 
spending authority, it is recommended that Council hold a first reading of the proposed ordinance. Additionally, 
should Council concur with the change in policy for grant applications, it would be in order for Council to vote on 
the proposed language as a separate motion. 
 
Mayor LaMear explained that during the goal setting session, City Council learned many City processes were 
delayed by having to obtain Council’s permission to apply for a grant. Council believed Staff should not have to 
ask permission to apply for grant funds and this amendment would speed up the grant application process. 
Council also believed the City Manager’s spending limit was delaying City processes and created a lot of extra 
work for Staff. This was an effort to streamline the City’s processes. 
 
City Manager Estes confirmed for Councilor Price that all the expenditures he authorized were included in the 
quarterly financial reports provided to City Council. Councilor Price stated that while she trusted City Manager 
Estes, she wanted to make sure there was accountability. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Nemlowill, seconded by Councilor Brownson to hold a first 
reading of the ordinance amending City Code Section 1.964A Pertaining to City Manager’s Spending Authority. 
Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, Brownson, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: 
None. 
 
Director Cronin conducted the first reading of the ordinance. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Brownson, seconded by Councilor Jones to approve the 
proposed amendment to the City’s grant application submittal policy, as stated in the Memorandum. Motion 
carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, Brownson, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 

Item 6(e): Resolution Authorizing a Grant (Forgivable Loan) from the Safe Drinking Water 
Revolving Loan Fund and Authorization to Award Contract for the Pipeline Road 
Transmission Resilience Study (Public Works) 

 



  

Page 5 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  January 17, 2017 

The Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority (IFA) has offered grants (forgivable loans) for resiliency studies of 
important infrastructure. At the April 4, 2016 meeting, Council authorized staff to submit a formal application to 
IFA requesting a $20,000 grant for a resiliency study of the 12-mile long, 21-inch diameter transmission main 
that delivers water from the City Headworks at Bear Creek Reservoir to Reservoir #2 and Reservoir #3 in town. 
On October 17, 2016, IFA offered a $15,500 to conduct the study. Hart Crowser has provided a proposal and 
cost of $20,000 to perform the study. Staff proposes that the $4,500 match be paid out of Engineering 
Department budget. The purpose of the study is to evaluate the existing water main route, determine its 
vulnerability in the event of a large seismic event, and identify possible new routes that would be more resilient 
and less susceptible to failure. While a larger seismic event will be the event considered for the study, the 
waterline is also susceptible to failure as a result of smaller seismic events, stream erosion, and natural 
landslides. It is recommended that the City Council approve the resolution for acceptance of the grant and 
authorize the contract for Hart Crowser to assist with the study. 
 
Councilor Nemlowill said she believed this was a very important project. She also believed the study and cost 
projections would reveal that replacing or upgrading the water main would be expensive. She confirmed with 
Staff that the grant did not contain any implementation requirements. 
 
Mayor LaMear called for public comments. 
 
George McCartin, 490 Franklin Avenue, Astoria, said the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) was the 
source of these grant funds. If the grant money does not come through, the City of Astoria would still be 
responsible for paying for the engineering contract because the contract would be approved in the same motion 
as the grant. 
 
City Manager Estes clarified that the IFA would be disbursing grant funds initially made available by the EPA. 
City Attorney Henningsgaard explained that the grant is in the form of a forgivable loan, which is subject to the 
availability of funds. The agreement would be nullified if the City does not receive the funds. Engineer Harrington 
added that the funds are reimbursable, so the City would have to spend money and then submit a disbursement 
request. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Nemlowill, seconded by Councilor Brownson, to approve the 
resolution to accept the Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority (IFA) grant (forgivable loan) for resiliency 
studies of important infrastructure, approve the IFA grant contract, and authorize the contract for Hart Crowser to 
assist with the study. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Jones, Nemlowill, Brownson, and 
Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA) There was none. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:33 pm.  
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Finance Director City Manager  



-1- 
 

Astoria Library Board Meeting 
Astoria Public Library 
November 29, 2016 

5:30 pm. 
 
 
Present: Library Board members Kate Summers, David Oser, Susan Stein, Kimberley Chaput (via 

telephone) and Chris Womack; Staff Library Director Jimmy Pearson and Lindsay; and ALFA 
Representative Steve Emmons. 

 
Excused: None 
 
Absent: None 
 
Call to Order:  Chair Kate Summers called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 
 
Approval of Agenda:  The agenda was approved with the addition of New Business Item 8(a): 
Retirement Party for Patti Skinner.  
 
Approval of Minutes:  The minutes of October 25, 2016 were approved with the following corrections: 
• Item 7(b) should state the next meeting would be held on Tuesday, November 29th, not Thursday. 
• Item 9 – correct the spelling of Kristen Shauck’s name. 
 
Board Reports:  Chair Summers reported that Write Astoria was going well and she recently spoke with 
the mayor about current Library Board business. 
 
David Oser reported that as a school board member, he was trying to get paid school librarian positions 
reinstated and he might ask the public library to get involved. 
 
Library Director’s Report:  Director Pearson noted his report packet included information about the 
performance and duties of Library Staff, which he believed could positively impact the library’s services. 
He had been talking to people in the community about library services to find out how to improve 
outreach. He updated the Board on staffing changes, included Anne Odom’s promotion, advertising the 
vacant part-time position, and Ami Kreider’s resignation. He and Ms. Odom will take over Patti Skinner’s 
administrative duties, the new part-time employee will focus on children and family services, and Ms. 
Kreider’s replacement will focus on adult services. He gave an update on Staff’s efforts to do some 
cosmetic maintenance and upgrades to the interior of the library. He reported on photography software 
from the American Library Association and explained how it could be used to promote the library. He was 
also working towards implementing computer reservation software and automating printing services, 
which will free up Staff time. 
 
He recently spoke with the curator at the Maritime Museum and learned the Lewis and Clark journals 
were valued at $140,000 with the original bindings. The journals have been rebound and he was 
confident they were being well cared for.  
 
Director Pearson noted the following upcoming events: 
• Friday, December 2nd – His meeting with library managers in the Timberland Library District about 

their processes and layouts.  
• Saturday, December 10th – Gifts for Giving, hosted by ROCC 
• Friday, December 16th – His meeting with State Librarian Mary Kay Dahlgreen about state library 

services. 
 
At the next Library Board meeting, he planned to present a cost neutral proposal to open the library for 
four hours on Monday by closing an hour earlier on other days. He depends on the Board to advise on 
policies and wanted feedback on his proposal. The community has expressed support for increasing the 
library’s hours of operations. Chair Summers said the change in hours could impact the writing group. 
David Oser added that people who work during the day depend on the library’s evening hours.  
 



-2- 
 

He confirmed some of the overgrown and dying plants at the library would be removed. Staff is trying to 
declutter the library to make it more functional. He hoped a new look would make the library more 
attractive. He also noted that the mystery garbage issue in the parking lot had been resolved. 
 
David Oser stated the Board believes the values used in the What’s Your Library Worth to You calculator 
are too low. Director Pearson said he would look into the source and accuracy of the values. 
 
Chris Womack asked how Staff has received Director Pearson’s changes. Director Pearson described his 
efforts to get to know his Staff and their abilities. He has promised Staff he would not make changes 
without explanation and he wanted their input. He believed Staff has taken ownership of the library. Some 
employees have been at the library a long time and are used to doing things a certain way, so, he is 
making small changes over time to allow Staff to be more readily available to library patrons.  
 
Lindsay confirmed Staff was enjoying some of the changes. Staff members are able to speak with 
Director Pearson and his direction was welcomed after six months without a library director. Director 
Pearson noted that Staff was proactive and he was trying to be respectful as he implemented new tasks. 
He seeks feedback from Staff and works to implement their ideas. 
 
Update on ALFA Activities: Steve Emmons said ALFA’s current balance was $8,267.93. He listed 
upcoming expenditures, which included magazine subscriptions and furniture for the Flag Room. ALFA’s 
annual meeting has been postponed and will be rescheduled in January. 
 
Director Pearson explained how reorganizing the Flag Room would make it more functional. Volunteers 
would provide the labor needed to move items in and out of storage. 
 
Foundation Update: David Oser said he would have an update in January. Based on Councilor Price’s 
comments at a recent City Council meeting, he anticipated financial information would be available from 
Staff soon. Chair Summer added that posts to the Foundation’s Facebook page continue to be well 
received.  
 
New Business:  
 

Item 8(a): Retirement Party for Patti Skinner 
 
Director Pearson said Mary Kay Dahlgreen, State Librarian, planned to attend the retirement party.  
 
Chair Summers noted the party was scheduled for December 15th from 5:00 pm to 7:00 pm. 
 
Old Business: There was none. 
 
Public Comments:  Steve Emmons thanked the library and the City for continuing the Passport Program 
and said he recently received a Multnomah County library card through the program. 
 
Items for Next Meeting’s Agenda: The next meeting would be on Tuesday, January 24, 2016. 
 
Adjournment:  There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:08 pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Paula Pinyerd, ABC Transcription Services, Inc. 
 
 

















 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 

 
 
January 27, 2017 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION AMENDING CITY OF ASTORIA NONDISCRIMINATION 

POLICY 
 
DISUCSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
On September 15, 2014, the Astoria City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-25 
establishing a Policy on Nondiscrimination.  At their July 18, 2016 meeting, the City 
Council considered and approved a request to remove the “slash (/)” as used in “gender 
identity/expression”, and in its place, use the word “and” to read as follows:  “gender 
identity and expression”.  It is proposed that the City of Astoria Policy regarding 
Nondiscrimination be amended to read as follows: 
 

“It is the policy of the City of Astoria that no person shall be denied the 
benefits of or be subjected to discrimination in any City program, service, or 
activity on the grounds of age, disability, race, religion, color, national origin, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression. The City of Astoria 
also requires its contractors and grantees to comply with this policy.” 

 
Since the policy was originally adopted by Resolution No. 14-25, the amended language 
also needs to be adopted by resolution.  This is being brought to Council as a 
housekeeping measure to ensure the correct language is approved through a resolution.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Council adopt the proposed Resolution implementing the 
change in language for the Nondiscrimination Policy. 
 
 By:           Julie Yuill  
 Julie Yuill, Executive Secretary  
 To the City Manager 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF 
THE CITY OF ASTORIA POLICY ON NONDISCRIMINATION 

 
WHEREAS, on September 15, 2014, the Astoria City Council adopted Resolution No. 
14-25 establishing a Policy on Nondiscrimination; and 
 
WHEREAS, at their July 18, 2016 meeting, the City Council considered and approved a 
request to remove the “slash (/)” as used in “gender identity/expression”, and in its 
place, use the word “and” to read as follows:  “gender identity and expression”; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is proposed that the amendment to the Nondiscrimination Policy be 
implemented by Resolution. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF ASTORIA: 
 
Section 1.  The City of Astoria Policy regarding Nondiscrimination is amended to read 
as follows: 
 

“It is the policy of the City of Astoria that no person shall be denied the 
benefits of or be subjected to discrimination in any City program, service, or 
activity on the grounds of age, disability, race, religion, color, national origin, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression. The City of Astoria 
also requires its contractors and grantees to comply with this policy.” 

 
Section 2. Repeal of Resolution.  Resolution No. 14-25, adopted by the City Council 
on September 15, 2014, is hereby repealed and superseded by this resolution. 
 
Section 3.  Effective Date. This Resolution is effective on the date of its passage. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THIS 6TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2017. 
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS 6TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2017. 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
City Manager 
 
ROLL CALL ON ADOPTION YEA  NAY  ABSENT 
Councilor Nemlowill 
  Brown 
  Price 
  Jones 
Mayor LaMear 



























By:      _____________________________________
           Brett Estes, Astoria City Manager











































































































































































 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 
 
 
 

January 30, 2017 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT:  VETERANS AND WAR MEMORIAL GRANT APPLICATION 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
The Veterans and War Memorials Grant Program was created and established by the Oregon 
Parks and Recreation Department to provide funding assistance to local governments for the 
construction and restoration of veterans and war memorials. The program helps to honor 
Oregon’s soldiers and veterans by commemorating their service to the country.  
 
The Parks Department, the American Legion Clatsop Post 12, Clatsop Community College’s 
Historic Preservation Program, and the Community Development Department have 
collaborated to develop a plan to renovate the Doughboy Monument’s interior, exterior, lighting 
system, and plumbing.  Portions of the work will be carried out through workshops organized 
by the Historic Preservation Program to offer educational opportunities to its students. 
Plumbing, electrical, and work addressing leaks in the structure’s roof will be completed by 
local contractors. 
 
The total cost for renovation work is estimated at $23,605 and the grant requires a 10% cash 
match. A $3,000 match from Astor West Urban Renewal Area can be contributed toward this 
project (as part of the larger Uniontown Reborn initiative).  This partnership dovetails with other 
key public investments that are planned for Uniontown, including façade grants for residential 
and commercial properties, a new streetscape design for W. Marine Drive, Maritime Memorial 
expansion, and the reopening of two-way traffic on Bond Street.   
 
Furthermore, the Uniontown Association has expressed support for these investments to 
revitalize the historic business district.  The Historic Preservation Program is providing $6,480 
in in-kind labor and Parks and Recreation Department staff are providing $1,500 in in-kind 
administration. The total grant request is $12,625. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council authorize submitting the Veterans and War Memorial 
Grant application for $12,625 in grant funds to renovate the Doughboy Monument.  
 
       

Submitted By: __________________ 
                                                                         Angela Cosby  

          Director of Parks & Recreation 



 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 
 
 
 

January 30, 2017 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH 

GREENWORKS P.C. TO PRODUCE SITE-SPECIFIC PARK PLANS AT 
SHIVELY AND MCCLURE PARK 

 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department’s Comprehensive Master Plan recommends 
completing site-specific park plans at several locations. The process would allow the 
Department to plan for specific improvements and new development, as well as long term 
maintenance at each site. The plans would assess alternative options for improvements and 
new development, and recommend the best option. The planning process would involve 
input from the community, specify landscape features and park amenities to be developed 
or improved, and include cost estimates, funding strategies, and a timeframe for 
implementation. 
 
It was recommended that site master plans for Shively Park and McClure Park be 
prioritized. During the community input process for the Parks and Recreation 
Comprehensive Master Plan, the public was asked to prioritize sites in need of master 
plans. Shively Park ranked as the community’s highest priority and a need to balance the 
park’s rich history with a low maintenance and accessible design that meets the 
community’s needs. McClure Park ranked as the second highest priority for site master 
plans with the community. The Friends of McClure Park have been active in fundraising to 
make improvements and add amenities. A master plan for McClure Park would ensure that 
new development is supported by the community and Parks and Recreation Department 
and that it can be cared for and adequately maintained into the future. 
 
The Oregon Parks and Recreation Department Local Government Grant Program provides 
Small Community Planning Grants to support site-specific park and outdoor recreation 
plans. These planning efforts target a specific site that has been identified in a system-wide 
park and recreation plan. Site-specific planning projects include public outreach and an 
analysis process that leads to a detailed plan for full development or redevelopment a park 
or other recreational-use site. The plan must address priorities identified in a system-wide or 
comprehensive plan. The planning process must include the adoption of the planning 
document through the local land use approval process. 
 
 



 
 
The City of Astoria was awarded the Oregon Parks and Recreation Department Local 
Government Grant of $40,000 to support funding site plans for Shively Park and McClure 
Park and approve the Local Government Grant Program Agreement. On October 17, 2016 
City Council accepted the grant and committed the required 40% match, in the amount of 
$16,000 cash budgeted in the Capital Improvement Fund and in-kind management and 
administration contribution of $11,000. The tentative project timeline is as follows:  
 
October, 2016:  Notice to proceed from OPRD. 
December, 2016:  Designation of a project manager and procurement of a consultant. 
January, 2017:  Project kickoff, public notice of upcoming meeting dates. 
February, 2017:  Initial public meeting to collect input. 
March, 2017:  Development of design alternatives. 
April, 2017:  Public meetings to collect input on design alternatives. 
May, 2017:  Selection of preferred concepts for McClure and Shively Parks; 

development of implementation and funding strategy. 
June, 2017:  Adoption of plan documents for McClure and Shively Park. 
 
On November 7, 2016 City Council authorized staff to request qualifications for a consultant 
or team of consultants specializing in community engagement, gathering, consolidating, and 
prioritizing community input, planning and landscape design and/or architecture. One 
statement of qualifications was received from Greenworks P.C. a Landscape Architecture 
and Environmental Design firm that has completed several project with the City of Astoria.   
A selection panel comprised of Parks and Recreation Department staff, Community 
Development staff, neighbors of Shively Park, and a representative from the Friends of 
McClure Park evaluated the received statement of qualification. The consultant was 
evaluated based on proven experience, expertise, and technical merit for the requested 
services. Based on the successful evaluation of Greenworks submittal, Greenworks and 
City staff negotiated project management plan, budget and schedule for the project.  
 
At this time the project has fallen one month behind schedule. To catch-up and with the 
tentative timeline the Parks and Recreation Department seeks City Council authorization to 
enter into a contract with Greenworks P.C. for a team of consultants specializing in 
community engagement, gathering, consolidating, and prioritizing community input, planning 
and landscape design and architecture to create site-specific park plans for Shively and 
McClure in the amount of $55,922.52.  
 
Attached to this memorandum is the professional services contract and scope of work which 
has been reviewed and approved as to form by City Attorney Henningsgaard.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that City Council approve the contract with Greenworks P.C. in the 
amount of $55,922.52 to develop master plans for Shively and McClure Parks.   
 
       

Submitted By: __________________ 
                                                                         Angela Cosby  

          Director of Parks & Recreation 
 



CONTRACT:

This Contract, made and entered into this ____ day of _________, by and between the 
City of Astoria, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, hereinafter called "CITY", 
and GREENWORK P.C. hereinafter called "CONSULTANT ", duly authorized to perform 
such services in Oregon.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the CITY requires services which CONSULTANT is capable of providing, 
under terms and conditions hereinafter described; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is able and prepared to provide such services as CITY does 
hereinafter require, under those terms and conditions set forth; now, therefore,

IN CONSIDERATION of those mutual promises and the terms and conditions set forth 
hereafter, the parties agree as follows:

1. CONSULTANT  SERVICES

A. CONSULTANT  shall  perform;  community engagement, gathering,   
consolidating, and prioritizing of community input, planning and landscape design and/
or architecture services for the City of Astoria as defined in Attachments: A, Scope and 
B, Schedule.

B. Consultant's services are defined solely by this Contract and not by any 
other contract or agreement that may be associated with this project.

C. The CONSULTANT'S services shall be performed as expeditiously as is 
consistent with professional skill and the orderly progress of work.

2. COMPENSATION

1. The CITY agrees to pay CONSULTANT a total not to exceed $55,922.52, for 
performance of those services provided herein;

2. The CONSULTANT will submit monthly billings for payment.

C. CITY certifies that sufficient funds are available and authorized for expenditure to 
finance costs of this Contract.

3. CONSULTANT IDENTIFICATION

CONSULTANT shall furnish to the CITY the CONSULTANT'S employer identification number, 



as designated by the Internal Revenue Service, or CONSULTANT'S Social Security Number, 
as CITY deems applicable.

4. CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE

For purposes hereof, the CITY'S authorized representative will be Angela Cosby, Parks and 
Recreation Director, acosby@astoria.or.us, (503) 298-2460 or designee.

5. CONSULTANT'S   REPRESENTATIVE

For purposes hereof, the CONSULTANT'S authorized representative will be Mike Faha, 
Phone (503) 222-5612 E-Mail: mikef@greenworkspc.com.  

6. CITY'S OBLIGATIONS

In order to facilitate the work of the CONSULTANT as above outlined, the CITY shall furnish to 
the CONSULTANT access to all relevant information that may be required in order to qualify for 
grant funds. In addition, the CITY shall act as liaison for the CONSULTANT, assisting the 
CONSULTANT with making contacts and facilitating meetings, as necessary.

7. CONSULTANT IS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

A CONSULTANT'S services shall be provided under the general supervision of City's Parks 
and Recreation Director or her designee, but CONSULTANT shall be an independent 
CONTRACTOR for all purposes and shall be entitled to no compensation other that the 
compensation provided for under Section 2 of this Contract,

B. CONSULTANT acknowledges that for all purposes related to this Contract, 
CONSULTANT is and shall be deemed to be an independent contractor and not an employee 
of the City, shall not be entitled to benefits of any kind to which an employee of the City is 
entitled and shall be solely responsible for all payments and taxes required by law; and 
furthermore in the event that CONSULTANT is found by a court of law or an administrative 
agency to be an employee of the City for any purpose, City shall be entitled to offset 
compensation due, or, to demand repayment of any amounts paid to CONSULTANT under the 
terms of the Contract, to the full extent of any benefits or other remuneration CONSULTANT 
receives (from City or third party) as result of said finding and to the full extent of any payments 
that City is required to make (to CONSULTANT or a third party) as a result of said finding.

C. The undersigned CONSULTANT hereby represents that no employee of the City  of 
Astoria, or any partnership or corporation in which a City of Astoria employee has an interest, 
has or will receive any remuneration of any  description  from  the  CONSULTANT, either 
directly or indirectly, in connection with the letting or performance  of this Contract, except as 
specifically declared in  writing.

8. CANCELLATION FOR  CAUSE

CITY may cancel all or any part of this Contract if CONSULTANT breaches any of the terms 
herein or in the event of any of the following: Insolvency of CONSULTANT;  voluntary or 

mailto:acosby@astoria.or.us
%22mailto:


involuntary petitionin bankruptcy by or against CONSULTANT; appointment of a receiver or 
trustee for CONSULTANT, or any assignment for benefit of creditors of CONSULTANT. 
Damages for breach shall be those allowed by Oregon law, reasonable and necessary 
attorney's fees, and other costs of litigation at trial and upon appeal. CONSULTANT  may  
likewise  cancel  all  or  any  part  of  this  contract if CITY breaches any of the terms herein 
and be therefore entitled to equivalent damages as expressed  above for CITY.

9. ACCESS TO RECORDS

CITY shall have access to such books, documents, papers and records of contract as are 
directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audit, examination, excerpts and 
transcripts.

10. FORCE MAJEURE

Neither CITY nor CONSULTANT shall be considered in default because of any delays in 
completion of responsibilities hereunder due to causes beyond the control and without fault or 
negligence on the part of the party so disenabled provided the party so disenabled shall within 
ten (10) days from the beginning such delay notify the other party in writing of the causes of 
delay and its probable extent. Such notification shall not be the basis for a claim for additional 
compensation.

11. NONWAIVER

The failure of the CITY to insist upon or enforce strict performance by CONSULTANT of any of 
the terms of this Contract or to exercise any rights hereunder shall not be construed as a 
waiver or relinquishment to any extent of its right to assert or rely upon such terms or rights on 
any future occasion.

12. ATTORNEY'S FEES

In the event suit or action is instituted to enforce any of the terms of this contract, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party such sum as the court may 
adjudge reasonable as attorney's fees at trial or on appeal of such suit or action, in addition to 
all other sums provided by law.APPLICABLE LAW

The law of the State of Oregon shall govern the validity of this Agreement, its interpretation and 
performance, and any other claims related to it.

13. CONFLICT BETWEEN TERMS

It is further expressly agreed by and between the parties hereto that should there be any 
conflict between the terms of this instrument and the proposal of the CONSULTANT, this 
instrument shall control and nothing herein shall be considered as an acceptance of the said 
terms of said proposal conflicting herewith.

14. INDEMNIFICATION

With regard to Comprehensive General Liability,  CONSULTANT  agrees  to  indemnify and 



hold harmless the CITY, City of Astoria, its Officers, and Employees  against and  from any and 
all loss, claims, actions, suits, and expenses for or on account  of injury, bodily or otherwise to, 
or death of persons, damage to or destruction of  property  belonging to city, consultant, or 
others resulting from or arising out of CONSULTANT'S negligent acts, errors or omissions in 
services pursuant to this Agreement. This  agreement to indemnify applies whether such 
claims are meritorious or not; provided, however, that if any such liability, settlements, loss, 
defense  costs  or expenses  result from the concurrent negligence of CONSULTANT and 
CITY any obligation to assume defense costs applies only to the extent of the negligence or 
alleged negligence of the CONSULTANT.

With regard to Professional Liability, CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify and hold harmless 
the CITY, its Officers and Employees from any and all liability, settlements, loss, reasonable 
defense costs, attorney fees and expenses arising out of CONSULTANT'S negligent acts, 
errors or omissions in service provided pursuant to this Agreement; provided, however, that if any 
such liability, settlements, loss, defense costs or expenses result from the concurrent negligence 
of CONSULTANT and the Client, this indemnification agreement applies only to the extent of 
negligence of CONSULTANT.

With respect to Commercial Liability and Professional Liability, CONSULTANT reserves the right 
to approve the choice of counsel.

15. INSURANCE

Prior to starting work hereunder, CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT'S cost, shall secure and 
continue to carry during the term of this contract, with an insurance company acceptable to 
CITY, the following insurance:

A. Commercial General Liability. CONSULTANT shall obtain, at CONSULTANT'S 
expense and keep in effect during the term of this Contract, Commercial General Liability 
Insurance covering bodily injury and property damage with limits   of not less
$1,000,000 per occurrence and the annual aggregate not less than $2,000,000. Coverage 
shall include CONSULTANT’S, sub-consultants and any directly or indirectly employed by 
either. This insurance will include personal and advertising injury liability, products and 
completed operations. Coverage may be written in combination with Automobile Liability 
Insurance (with separate limits). Coverage will be written on an occurrence basis. If written 
in conjunction with Automobile Liability the combined single limit per occurrence will not be 
less than $1,000,000 for each job site or location. Each annual aggregate limited will not 
be less than   $2,000,000.

B. Automobile Liability. CONSULTANT shall obtain, at CONSULTANT'S expense and keep 
in effect during the term of the resulting Contract, Commercial Business Automobile Liability 
Insurance covering all owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles. This coverage may be written in 
combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate   limits).  
Combined  single  limit  per  occurrence   will  not  be  less    than
$1,000,000.

C. Additional Insured. The liability insurance coverage shall include City and its officers 
and employees as Additional Insured but only with respect to CONSULTANT'S activities to be 
performed under this Contract. Coverage will be primary and non contributory with any other 
insurance and self-insurance. Prior to starting work under this Contract, CONSULTANT shall 



furnish a certificate to City from each insurance company providing insurance showing that the 
City is an additional insured, the required coverage   is in force, stating policy numbers, dates 
of expiration and limits of liability, and further stating that such coverage is primary and not  
contributory.

D. Notice of Cancellation or Change. There will be no cancellation, material change, 
potential exhaustion of aggregate limits or non-renewal of insurance coverage(s) without thirty 
(30) days written notice from CONSULTANT or its insurer(s) to CITY. Any failure to comply with 
the reporting provisions of this clause will constitute a material breach of this Contract and will 
be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement.

E. Professional Liability Insurance. The CONSULTANT shall have in force a policy of 
Professional Liability Insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000. The CONSULTANT 
shall keep such policy in force and current during the term of this contract.

16. WORKMEN'S  COMPENSATION

The Contractor, its subcontractors, if any, and all employers working under this Agreement are 
either subject employers under the Oregon Workers' Compensation Law and shall comply with 
ORS 656.017, which requires them to provide workers' compensation coverage for all their 
subject workers, or are employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126.

17. LABORERS AND MATERIALMEN, CONTRIBUTIONS TO INDUSTRIAL 
ACCIDENT FUND, LIENS AND WITHHOLDING TAXES

Contractor shall make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying contractor labor 
or material for the prosecution of the work provided for this contract.

Contractor shall pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from 
contractor or any subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract.

Contractor shall not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the state, 
county, school district, municipality, Municipal Corporation or subdivision thereof, on 
account of any labor or material furnished.

Contractor shall pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees 
pursuant to ORS 316.167.

18. PAYMENT OF CLAIMS BY PUBLIC OFFICERS

If the contractor fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt payment of any claim for labor or 
services furnished to the contractor or a subcontractor by any person in connection with 
the public contract as such claim becomes due, the proper officer or officers representing 
the municipality may pay such claim to the person furnishing the labor or services and 
charge the amount of the payment against funds due or to become due the contractor by 
reason of such contract.

The payment of a claim in the manner here authorized shall not relieve the contractor or 
the-contractor's surety from obligation with respect to any unpaid claims.



19. PAYMENT OF MEDICAL CARE

Contractor shall promptly, as due, make payment to any person, co-partnership, 
association or corporation, furnishing medical, surgical and hospital care or other needed 
care and attention, incident to sickness or injury to the employees of such contractor, of all 
sums which the contractor agrees to pay for such services and all moneys and sums 
which the contractor collected or deducted from the wages of employees pursuant to any 
law, contract or agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for such service.

20. OVERTIME

Consultant's employees shall be paid for overtime work performed under this contract in 
accordance with ORS 653.010 to 653.261 and the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29
U.S.C. sections 201 to 209).

21. USE OF DRAWINGS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

The ADC shall own all drawings and other documents prepared by the CONSULTANT for the 
project along with all common law, statutory and other reserved rights, including the copyright. 
CONSULTANT shall provide computer aided design (CAD) drawings on media designated by and 
to a scale acceptable by CITY.

CONSULTANT may reuse all drawings and other documents prepared by the CONSULTANT for 
the project for any purpose without written authorization of CITY.

22. STANDARD OF CARE

The standard of care applicable to consultant's services will be the degree of skill and 
diligence normally employed by professional engineers or consultants performing the same or 
similar services at the time CONSULTANT'S services are performed. CONSULTANT will re-
perform any services not meeting this standard without additional compensation.

23. OCCUPATIONAL TAX

CONTRACTOR shall pay the City of Astoria Occupational Tax as provided in Astoria Code 
Sections 8.000 to 8.035.

24. NO THIRD PARTY BENEF-ICIARIES

This contract gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than the CITY and CONSULTANT 
and has no third party beneficiaries.

25. SEVERABILITY AND SURVIVAL

If any of the provisions contained in this Agreement are held illegal, invalid or unenforceable, 
the enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be impaired thereby. Limitations of 
liability shall survive termination of this Agreement for any cause.



26. NONDISCRIMINATION

It is the policy of the City of Astoria that no person shall be denied the benefits of or be subject to 
discrimination in any City program, service, or activity on the grounds of age, disability, race, 
religion, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity/expression. The City of 
Astoria also requires it's contractors to comply with this policy.

27. COMPLETE CONTRACT

This Contract and its referenced attachments constitute the complete contract 
between CITY and CONSULTANT and supersedes all prior written or oral 
discussions or agreements. CONSULTANT services are defined solely by this 
Contract and its attachments and not by any other contract or agreement that 
may be associated with this Contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement the day 
and year first written above.

Approved as to form: CITY OF ASTORIA, a municipal
corporation of the State of Oregon

                            
Attorney

BY: 
____________________________________

    City Manager
Date

BY: 
____________________________________

    Contractor
Date 



 

GreenWorks, P.C.  •  Landscape Architecture  •  Environmental Design 
24 NW 2nd Avenue, Suite 100  • Portland, Oregon 97209  • 503.222.5612  • Fax: 503.222.2283  • www.greenworkspc.com 
 

Shively and McClure Park Master Plans 
Scope of Work 

 

Task 1.0 Project Orientation and Analysis     

1.1 Project Start-up Meeting with City and Site Visit.  Two to three brief (30-45 
minutes) individual or small group meetings will be conducted with key 
stakeholders on the same day.  Stakeholders may include representatives of 
the Friends of McClure Park, Chamber of Commerce representatives, City 
department staff, and/or members of the Parks Advisory Board. 

1.2 Compile base information, research background information, and identify 
regulatory requirements for each Park. This research is only to identify the 
general requirements and restriction for proposed park within the scope of this 
proposal and may include such requirements as: landscape areas, street 
trees, screening and buffering, tree counts, setbacks from sensitive areas, 
historic district regulations, utilities for water, sanitary sewer and storm 
drainage, and review condition of existing site walls and structures (excluding 
Shively Hall) 

1.3 Prepare site inventory and analysis, site sections, existing photos and program 
precedent boards. Assessments of existing vegetation, slope and site 
conditions, on-site utilities, and existing exterior walls will inform opportunities 
and constraints of the site.   

1.4 City Meetings – Open House #1:   
 We will meet with the City, Stakeholders and Public to present site inventory 

analysis and gather feedback for the sites’ programming.  The Open House 
meetings will be separate for each park in Task 1. Community input from these 
2 meetings will be the basis for developing the design options in task 2.0.  We 
will also assess the schedule and considerations for upcoming tasks.    City 
staff will publicize the meeting via the City’s Website, a media release and 
contact with the Daily Astorian, and meeting flyers posted in local gathering 
places, including at the two parks.  Parks Advisory Board Members will be 
encouraged to attend the Open Houses. The Consultant will prepare text for 
the media release and website announcement and the meeting flyer. 

1.5 Additional Public Outreach Activities:   
 Additional community outreach and feedback beyond Open House #1 will be 

conducted and compiled by city staff. Potential activities include one or more 
pop-up meetings at McClure and/or Shively Parks and project materials 
posted on the City’s Website.  The consultant team will work with staff to 
identify and advise on the schedule and process for conducting these 
activities. 

 
Attachment "A"  Page 1 of 5



 
Shively and McClure Park Master Plans 
Page 2 
 
 

 
GreenWorks, P.C.  •  Landscape Architecture  •  Environmental Design 
24 NW 2nd Avenue, Suite 100  • Portland, Oregon 97209  • 503.222.5612  • Fax: 503.222.2283  • www.greenworkspc.com 

 

1.6 Teleconference meeting with city staff to review community input from Open 
House #1 and other outreach activities. 

Task 1.0 Deliverables: 
 Site Inventory and Analysis Plan for each site. 
 Site Sections  
 Existing Conditions Photo Boards 
 Precedent Image Boards of Program Elements. 
 Open House #1 Agenda, outreach text, and materials 
 Project Schedule 

Task 1.0 Assumptions: 
 City will provide GIS or AutoCad base information, including: Property 

lines, utilities, topography.  
 This scope does not include contracting for Arborist or Geotechnical 

Engineer for site assessments.  
 This scope excludes a site survey and structural assessment of 

Shively Hall building. The structural review input will assess exterior 
landscape walls. 

 Consultant team members will prepare agenda and other materials for 
Open House #1 and will facilitate the meeting with City staff support. 

 City staff to compile community input from open house #1 for 
GreenWorks review. 

 Additional community outreach and feedback beyond Open House #1 
will be conducted and compiled by city staff.   

 This scope is based on the understanding that McClure Park and 
Shively Park Master Planning will occur on the same timeline, but with 
separate open house meetings. 

Task 2.0 Develop Design Options      

2.1 Prepare (2) preliminary design options for each park: 
 The design options during this phase includes hand drawn sketches for up to 

two (2) layouts for the park based on anticipated program elements.  These 
elements include:  playgrounds, ball court(s), picnic areas, landscaping, paths 
and connections to adjacent trails.   

2.2 Prepare revised design options based on city staff review. Graphics prepared 
will be computer generated plans of proposed program layouts with hand 
sketched perspectives.  

2.3 City Meeting – Open House #2: 
 We will meet with the City, Stakeholders and Public to review the design 

options for the two sites.  The Open House meetings will be separate for each 

 
Attachment "A"  Page 2 of 5



 
Shively and McClure Park Master Plans 
Page 3 
 
 

 
GreenWorks, P.C.  •  Landscape Architecture  •  Environmental Design 
24 NW 2nd Avenue, Suite 100  • Portland, Oregon 97209  • 503.222.5612  • Fax: 503.222.2283  • www.greenworkspc.com 

 

park in task 2. Community Input from these meeting will be the basis for 
developing the preferred alternative in task 3.0.  We will also assess the 
schedule and considerations for upcoming tasks.  City staff will publicize the 
meeting via the City’s Website, a media release and contact with the Daily 
Astorian, and meeting flyers posted in local gathering places, including at the 
two parks.  The Consultant will prepare text for the media release and Website 
announcement and the meeting flyer. 

2.4 Additional Public Outreach Activities:   
 Additional community outreach and feedback beyond Open House #1 will be 

conducted and compiled by city staff. Potential activities include one or more 
pop-up meetings at McClure and/or Shively Parks and project materials 
posted on the City’s Website.  The consultant team will work with staff to 
identify and advise on the schedule and process for conducting these 
activities. 

2.5 Teleconference meeting with city staff to review community input for preferred 
option from Open House #2 and other outreach activities. 

Task 2.0 Deliverables: 
 Printed graphic boards for:  

 (2) Preliminary Design options for each park  
 Perspective sketch for each concept option 
 Boards will be used by City as pop-up outreach materials 

 Open House #2 Agendas, outreach text, and materials 
Task 2.0 Assumptions: 

 City staff to compile community input from open house #2 for 
GreenWorks review. 

 This scope is based on the understanding that McClure Park and 
Shively Park Master Planning will occur on the same timeline, but with 
separate open house meetings. 

Task 3.0 Develop Preferred Master Plan     

3.1 Prepare Preferred Design Option and cost estimate with potential funding 
sources for each park based on community input from Open House #2: 
Graphics prepared will be computer rendered plan with hand draw sketch. 

3.2 Teleconference review of preferred option and cost estimate with city staff.  
3.3 Prepare Final Master Plan and cost estimate for each site to be delivered 

electronically to city staff.  
3.4 Compile Master Plan Document for each site to include up to 5 pages of 

narrative describing the final plan, site analysis, and design process.  City Staff 
will present these master plan documents to City Council for adoption.  

 
Attachment "A"  Page 3 of 5



 
Shively and McClure Park Master Plans 
Page 4 
 
 

 
GreenWorks, P.C.  •  Landscape Architecture  •  Environmental Design 
24 NW 2nd Avenue, Suite 100  • Portland, Oregon 97209  • 503.222.5612  • Fax: 503.222.2283  • www.greenworkspc.com 

 

Task 3.0 Deliverables: 
 (1) Final Design Option and cost estimate for each park  
 Perspective sketch for preferred option 
 Final Master Plan Document for each park as described in task 3.4. 

Task 3.0 Assumptions: 
 Based on this scope, design team will not be attending City Council 

meetings or  update the master plan based on City Council comments. 
We can work with the City to address comments with a contract 
amendment if necessary.  

 

TERMS OF AGREEMENT 
 
Fee Schedule 
Professional fees for the scope of work can be broken down as follows: 
 
Tasks 1.0-3.0 ........................................................................................... $ 54,826.00 
 
Reimbursable Expenses at 2% .................................................................. $  1,096.52 
 
TOTAL ............................................................................................... $ 55,922.52 
 
This total fee of $ 55,922.52 is on a time and materials not to exceed basis and includes 
reimbursable expenses.  See attached spreadsheet for proposed tasks and hours.  
 
Hourly rates 
This proposal is based upon the hourly rates outlined below for the current calendar year.  
If this proposal is accepted or work begun in the following calendar year, our fees will be 
revised to incorporate the billing rates then in effect.  If work continues into subsequent 
calendar years we reserve the right to revise and update our fees. 
 
Principal/Technical Director ......................................................... $175.00 per hour 
Senior Associate II  ....................................................................... $145.00 per hour 
Landscape Architect III ................................................................. $140.00 per hour 
Landscape Architect II .................................................................. $125.00 per hour 
Landscape Designer III ................................................................. $120.00 per hour 
Landscape Architect I ................................................................... $115.00 per hour 
Landscape Designer II .................................................................... $90.00 per hour 
Landscape Designer I ..................................................................... $80.00 per hour 
Clerical/Administrative .................................................................. $95.00 per hour 
Consultants ............................................................................................ Cost + 10% 
 

 
Attachment "A"  Page 4 of 5



 
Shively and McClure Park Master Plans 
Page 5 
 
 

 
GreenWorks, P.C.  •  Landscape Architecture  •  Environmental Design 
24 NW 2nd Avenue, Suite 100  • Portland, Oregon 97209  • 503.222.5612  • Fax: 503.222.2283  • www.greenworkspc.com 

 

 
Direct Reimbursable Expenses 
Project expenses such as mileage, delivery services, printing and reproductions, supplies, 
and communication will be billed at cost, plus ten percent and added to monthly invoices. 
 
Additional Work  
Client agrees to promptly notify Landscape Architect if Client's schedule or budget 
changes.  Client acknowledges that significant changes to the Project or construction 
schedule or budget or to the Project's scope may require Additional Services of Landscape 
Architect. Fees for additional work, beyond the scope of work as outlined in this 
agreement, will be invoiced as provided above, or according to our regular rates in effect 
at the time.  We will notify you before performing additional services.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Mike Faha, ASLA LEED AP 
Principal 
GreenWorks PC 
503.222.5612 | mikef@greenworkspc.com 
 
 
Accepted by: 

   
Company Name  Date 

 
 

 
Attachment "A"  Page 5 of 5



Shively and McClure Park Master Plans - Project Schedule 1/27/2017

Notice to Proceed ▼

1.0 PROJECT ORIENTATION AND ANALYSIS
Start-up Meeting / Site Visit (Feb 8th) 
Compile Base / Code Research 
Inventory Analysis   
Open House #1 (March 1/2) 1
Meeting for Input Review 

2.0 DESIGN OPTIONS
Prepare Preliminary Design Options  
City review and revisions  
Open House #2  (TBD) 2
Extended Outreach  
Meeting for input review 

3.0 FINAL MASTER PLAN
Prepare Preferred Design and Estimates  
Meeting review with city 
Final Plan and estimate revisions 
Compile Master Plan Report     ▼
City Council Presentation (City staff)

Legend
Major Task Duration

Sub Task Duration   

Milestones ▼
City Council Presentation

April '17 June '17Task May '17Jan. '17 Feb. '17 March '17

Attachment "B"



 
  
     

        CITY OF ASTORIA 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
 
January 20, 2017 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO ASTORIA CITY CODE SECTION 5.810 

RELATED TO IDENTIFICATIONS AND HEARINGS ON DANGEROUS 
ANIMALS 

 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
This ordinance received its first reading at the January 17, 2017 City Council meeting.  
During a recent hearing on a dangerous animal appeal it was noted by the Municipal 
Court Judge that there was no guidance on what to use as a burden of proof in hearings 
related to dangerous dogs.  This revision attempts to resolve that issue, takes care of a 
scrivener’s error and a modification to reflect changes in technology and practices at the 
Police Department allowing for the recording of statements instead of requiring signed 
written statements.  A version showing the added and deleted language is attached 
along with a clean copy for consideration.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Council hold a second reading and adopt the amendment to 
Astoria City Code Section 5.810.  
 

 
______________________________ 
Brad Johnston 
Chief of Police  
Assistant City Manager 

 



Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 17-  
 

AN ORDINANCE REVISING ASTORIA CITY CODE SECTION 5.810 PROVIDING 
FOR IDENTIFICATION OF DANGEROUS ANIMALS; APPEALS; RESTRICTIONS 

PENDING APPEAL 
 

THE CITY OF ASTORIA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Revision of Astoria City Code Section 5.810.  Astoria City Code section 
5.810 is revised to read as follows:  
 

“(A) The chief of police or the chief's designee shall have authority to 
determine whether any animal has engaged in the behaviors specified in 
Section 2. This determination shall be based upon an investigation that 
includes observation of and testimony about the animal's behavior. These 
observations and testimony can be provided by county animal control 
officer or by other witnesses who personally observed the behavior. They 
shall either be recorded or sign a written statement attesting to the 
observed behavior and agree to provide testimony regarding the animal's 
behavior if necessary.  

 
(B) The chief of police or the chief's designee shall give the animal's owner 

written notice by certified mail or personal service of the animal's 
classification as a dangerous animal and of the additional restrictions 
applicable to that animal by reason of its classification. If the owner denies 
that the behavior in question occurred, the owner may appeal the decision 
to the municipal judge by filing a written request for a hearing with the 
chief of police within ten (10) days of the date the notice was mailed to the 
owner by certified mail or the owner was personally served. 

 
(C) The municipal judge shall hold a public hearing on any appeal from the 

chief of police’s decision to classify an animal as potentially dangerous. 
The owner and any other persons having relevant evidence concerning 
the animal's behavior as specified in section 2 shall be allowed to present 
testimony. The municipal judge shall determine by a preponderance of the 
evidence whether behavior specified in section 2 was exhibited by the 
animal in question. The municipal judge shall issue an order containing his 
or her determination, which shall be final. 

 
(D) Once the owner has received notice of the animal's classification as a 

Level 1, 2, 3, or 4 dangerous animal pursuant to subsection (B) of this 
section, the owner shall comply with the restrictions specified in the notice 
until such time as the chief of police or the chief's designee's decision may 
be reversed on appeal. Failure to comply with the specified restrictions 
pending the completion of all appeals shall be a violation of this ordinance 
for which a fine can be imposed. Additionally, the chief of police or the 
designee shall have authority to impound the animal pending completion 
of all appeals. 



Page 2 of 2 

 
(E) If the chief of police or the designee finds that an animal has engaged in 

Level 5 behavior, the animal shall be impounded pending the completion 
of an appeal. If the chief of police or his/her designee's decision is upheld 
on appeal, the animal's owner shall be liable for the cost of the animal's 
impoundment.” 

 
Section 2. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after its 
adoption.   
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THIS 6TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2017 
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS 6TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2017 
 
    
 Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
City Manager 
 
 
ROLL CALL ON ADOPTION YEA NAY ABSENT 
Councilor Nemlowill 
 Brownson  
 Price 
 Jones 
Mayor LaMear 



 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 
 
 
 

 
 
January 20, 2017 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE REVISING CITY CODE SECTION1.964A PERTAINING TO 

CITY MANAGER’S SPENDING AUTHORITY  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This ordinance had its first reading at the January 17, 2017 City Council meeting.  At 
the January 6, 2017 goal setting session, there was discussion regarding the City 
Manager’s spending authority which is currently set at $10,000.  This amount has been 
in place since 1999.  Current Astoria City Code language reads as follows: 
 

1.964 Public Contracts - Authority of Purchasing Manager.  
 

A. General Authority.  The City Manager shall be the purchasing 
manager for the City of Astoria and is hereby authorized to issue all 
solicitations and to award all City of Astoria contracts for which the 
contract price does not exceed $10,000, except that the purchasing 
manager is authorized to make bulk fuel purchases in an amount not 
to exceed $25,000.  Subject to the provisions of this Ordinance, the 
purchasing manager may adopt and amend all solicitation materials, 
contracts and forms required or permitted to be adopted by 
contracting agencies under the Oregon Public Contracting Code or 
otherwise convenient for the City of Astoria’s contracting needs.  The 
purchasing manager shall hear all solicitation and award protests.   

 
There was discussion from Council members to increase that limit to $50,000.  
Spending authorities for managers in our area are as follows: 
 

• Warrenton $25,000 
• Clatsop County $30,000 
• Seaside $50,000 
• Cannon Beach $50,000 

 



 
 
 
At the request of the Council an ordinance revision has been prepared for consideration 
and is attached to this memorandum.  In addition to replacing the $10,000 amount with 
$50,000, the reference to bulk fuel has been deleted since the new spending authority 
would accommodate those purchases.  It should be noted that the City’s purchasing 
ordinance will continue to dictate how bids, solicitations, and purchases will be made.  
In discussing the spending authority revision with City Attorney Henningsgaard, he 
noted that a subsequent review of the purchasing ordinance may be in order to better 
align the manager’s spending authority with that code and to better align the City 
purchasing ordinance with changes in State statutes.  Staff will begin review of the 
City’s purchasing codes. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
If City Council is in agreement with the proposed change in spending authority for the 
City Manager’s spending authority, it is recommended that the Council hold a second 
reading and adopt the proposed ordinance.   
 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-_____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE REVISING THE ASTORIA CITY CODE RELATING TO  
LOCAL GOVERNMENT PUBLIC CONTRACTING REGULATIONS 

 
 
THE CITY OF ASTORIA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Section 1.964A of the Astoria Code is amended to read as follows: 
 
“1.964 Public Contracts – Authority of Purchasing Manager.  

 
A. General Authority.  The City Manager shall be the purchasing manager 

for the City of Astoria and is hereby authorized to issue all solicitations and 
to award all City of Astoria contracts for which the contract price does not 
exceed $50,000.  Subject to the provisions of this Ordinance, the 
purchasing manager may adopt and amend all solicitation materials, 
contracts and forms required or permitted to be adopted by contracting 
agencies under the Oregon Public Contracting Code or otherwise 
convenient for the City of Astoria’s contracting needs.  The purchasing 
manager shall hear all solicitation and award protests.”   

 
Section 2. Repeal.  Ordinance No. 06-03 adopted June 5, 2006 is repealed. 
 
Section 3. Effective Date.  The provisions of this ordinance shall take effect 30 days 
after its passage.   
 
ADOPTED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL THIS 6TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2017. 
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS 6TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2017. 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
 Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
City Manager 
 
 
ROLL CALL ON ADOPTION YEA NAY ABSENT 
Councilor Nemlowill  
 Brownson   
 Price  
 Jones  
Mayor LaMear  
 











 

              AGENDA 
ASTORIA DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION  

February 6, 2017 
Immediately Follows Council Meeting 

2nd Floor Council Chambers 
1095 Duane Street  Astoria OR  97103 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. REPORTS OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
4. CHANGES TO AGENDA  
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be adopted by one 
motion unless a member of the Astoria Development Commission requests to have any item 
considered separately.  Members of the community may have an item removed if they 
contact the City Manager by 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 
(a) ADC Minutes of 12/5/16 
(b) Award Design Contract for Bond Street Retaining Wall Project (Public Works) 

 
6. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

All agenda items are open for public comment following deliberation by the ADC.  Rather 
than asking for public comment after each agenda item, the Mayor asks that audience 
members raise their hands if they want to speak to the item and they will be recognized.  In 
order to respect everyone’s time, comments will be limited to 3 minutes. 

 
7. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

(a) ORS 192.660(2)(e) – Real Property Transactions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE DISABLED.  AN INTERPRETER FOR THE 
HEARING IMPAIRED MAY BE REQUESTED UNDER THE TERMS OF ORS 192.630  

BY CONTACTING THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE AT 503-325-5824. 
 



 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
  Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 
 

 
February 2, 2017 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ASTORIA DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION (ADC) MEETING OF FEBRUARY 6, 

2017 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Item 5(a): ADC Minutes 
 

The minutes of the ADC meeting of December 5, 2016 are enclosed for your 
review.  Unless there are any corrections, it is recommended that the ADC 
approve these minutes. 

 
 
Item 5(b): Award Design Contract for Bond Street Retaining Wall Project (Public 

Works) 
 

As a result of a landslide in 2007, Bond Street has been closed to two way traffic.  
Only one westbound lane of traffic is allowed limiting east west traffic to Marine 
Drive. In addition, water and sewer lines have been rerouted above the street.  
The Public Works Department commissioned a geotechnical analysis completed in 
August 2015 to study the feasibility of adding a retaining wall.  The results of the 
study concluded that is indeed feasible.  Based on the results, the Public Works 
Department prepared an “order of magnitude” cost estimate of $395,000 to 
construct a retaining wall, repair Bond Street for two way traffic, and include low 
cost traffic calming measures to mitigate potential speeding along a narrow street 
in a dense neighborhood of residential buildings.  

 
The Astoria Development Commission (ADC) recently completed a boundary 
expansion of the Astor West Urban Renewal District (AWURD).  The expansion 
includes an area from Columbia Avenue to the City owned slide area adding 
roughly 4 acres to the district.  The expansion was targeted to achieve reopening 
Bond Street to two way traffic and potentially revitalizing residential properties.  
The ADC is now ready to proceed with the Bond Street Retaining Wall Project.  
Staff requested Cornforth Consultants prepare a proposal for geotechnical and 
civil engineering design services for the project.  Staff will prepare bid documents, 
bid the project and provide construction management, with Cornforth providing 
inspection assistance.  Staff will also prepare a traffic calming strategy for the 



Page 2 of 2 

segment of Bond Street in the vicinity of the project.  The engineering fees for the 
project provided by Cornforth are estimated at a not-to-exceed amount of $74,950.  
Cornforth is listed on the ODOT Consultant List for Local Public Agencies so staff 
recommends executing a professional services contract for the design services 
per Astoria Code Section 1.967C(3), Award from a Qualified Pool.  Funds for this 
project would come from the AWURD.  It is recommended that the Astoria 
Development Commission execute a contract with Cornforth Consultants for a 
total not-to-exceed amount of $74,950 for geotechnical and civil engineering 
services for the Bond Street Retaining Wall Project. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Item 7(a): ORS 192.660(2)(e) – Real Property Transactions 
 

The City Council will recess to executive session to discuss a real property 
transaction issue. 



  

Page 1 of 1 Astoria Development Commission Journal of Proceedings 
 December 5, 2016 

ASTORIA DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION    ADC JOURNAL OF PROCEEDINGS 
City Council Chambers 
December 5, 2016 
 
A regular meeting of the Astoria Development Commission was held at the above place at the hour of 8:33 pm. 
 
Commissioners Present:  Price, Herzig, Warr, Nemlowill, Mayor LaMear, Ward 2 Vacant. 
 
Commissioners Excused: None 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Estes, Community Development Director Cronin, Parks and Recreation Director 
Cosby, Finance Director Brooks, Police Chief Johnston, Public Works Director Cook, and City Attorney 
Henningsgaard. The meeting is recorded and will be transcribed by ABC Transcription Services, Inc.   
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONERS: No reports. 
 
CHANGES TO AGENDA: No changes. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  
 
The following items were presented on the Consent Calendar: 

5(a)   ADC Minutes of 9/19/16 
5(b)   ADC Minutes of 10/3/16 

 
Commission Action: Motion by Commissioner Price, seconded by Commissioner Nemlowill, to approve the 
Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Commissioners Warr, Nemlowill, Herzig and Price, and 
Mayor LaMear. Nays: None. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

Item 6(a): Heritage Square EPA Grant – AMEC Contract Amendment #4 Appropriation of Funds 
(Public Works) 

 
The City of Astoria was awarded a United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) brown field pilot grant 
in 2012 for assessment and cleanup of the Heritage Square site. The City has used Astor East Urban Renewal 
District funds pay for the grant match and project cost overages to date. Council is now being asked to authorize 
a contract amendment with AMEC Foster Wheeler for a not-to-exceed amount of $18,100. There are also 
additional fees, currently estimated at $6000, needed for Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 
oversight for the project. The combined costs for both AMEC and DEQ is $24,100 and would be funded out of 
the Astor East Urban Renewal District fund. Staff will be going before the City Council at the December 5th 
Council meeting for authorization to enter into a contract amendment with AMEC for the additional work. It is 
recommended that the Astoria Development Commission approve the expenditure of $24,100 for the additional 
work for the Heritage Square EPA Grant Project. 
 
Commission Action: Motion by Commissioner Price, seconded by Commissioner Warr, that the Astoria 
Development Commission approve the expenditure of $24,100 for the additional work for the Heritage Square 
EPA Grant Project. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Commissioners Warr, Nemlowill, Herzig and Price, and 
Mayor LaMear. Nays: None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:35 pm.  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Secretary City Manager  




























	Agenda 2-6-17
	Agenda Memo 2-6-17
	6(a) CC Minutes 1-3-17
	6(b) CC Minutes 1-17-17
	6(c)(1) Library Board Minutes 11-29-16
	6(d) Library MOU
	6(e) Nondiscrimination Policy Resolution
	6(f) IFA Storm Damage Grant Acceptance
	6(g) FEMA Contract Award
	6(h) Doughboy Grant Application
	6(i) Greenworks Contract for Shively and McClure Parks
	7(a) Dangerous Animal Amendment Ordinance
	7(b) City Manager Spending Authority  Ordinance
	7(c) Waterfront Bridges Project
	ADC Agenda 2-6-17
	ADC Memo 2-6-17
	5(a) ADC Minutes 12-5-16
	5(b) ADC Bond Street Retaining Wall Project



